
FINANCE  
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
 

Called by:  John Butitta, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2024 
Members:  Jean Crosby, Joe 
Hoffman, Keith McDonald, Jaime 
Salgado, John F. Sweeney, 
Michael Thompson 

TIME: 
 
 

LOCATION: 

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE MEETING AT 5:30 PM 
ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 

 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 

   404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of September 26, 2024 Minutes           

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance Committee with 
issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or 
inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five 
speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning 
matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  
Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An 
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This 
prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to 
be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name 

E. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the General Fund 

F. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the IMRF Fund  

G. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County Highway 
Fund 

H. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County Bridge 
Fund  

I. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Federal Aid 
Matching Fund 

J. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Health Department 
Fund 

K. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Tort Judgment 
and Liability Fund 

L. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Social Security 
Fund  



M. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Veterans 
Assistance Fund 

N. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Detention Home 
Fund 

O. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Historical Museum 
Fund 

P. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Nursing Home 
Operations Fund 

Q. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Children’s 
Advocacy Fund 

R. Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation and Labor Negotiations 

S. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago Entitled Luis 
Munoz versus Winnebago County 

T. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago Entitled Zoe 
Walker versus Winnebago County 

U. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago Entitled James 
Gregory versus Winnebago County 

V. Other Matters 

W. Adjournment 



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Special Finance Committee Meeting 

County Courthouse 
Conference Room 815, Behind the County Board Room 

400 West State Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Thursday, September 26, 2024 
5:30 PM 

Present: Others Present: 
Jaime Salgado, Vice Chairperson 
Jean Crosby 
Joe Hoffman 
Keith McDonald 
John F. Sweeney 

Absent: 
John Butitta, Chairperson 
Michael Thompson 

Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 
Lafakeria Vaughn, Civil Bureau Chief, State’s Attorney’s Office 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of August 29, 2024 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance

Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign-up at the
meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the
ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or
threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a
maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall
include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a
different topic.  After acknowledgment by the Chairman, please stand and state your
name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Peyton Pitter v. Winnebago
County, et al.)

F. Other Matters
G. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Vice Chairperson Salgado called the meeting to order at 5:33 PM. 

Roll Call 
Vice Chairperson Salgado yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Hoffman yes, Mr. McDonald yes, Mr. 
Sweeney yes. 

Approval of August 29, 2024 Minutes 
Motion: Mr. McDonald.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Vice Chairperson Salgado called for any discussion. 



 

 Page 2  
  

The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 
 

Public Comment 
Vice Chairperson Salgado omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to 
no one present to speak. 
 
Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Peyton Pitter v. Winnebago 
County, et al.) 
Motion: Mr. Sweeney.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Vice Chairperson Salgado called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Matters 
None reported. 
 
Adjournment 
Vice Chairperson Salgado called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Mr. Hoffman.  Second: Mr. Sweeney. 
The motion to adjourn passed by a unanimous voice vote. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the General Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $14,879,421 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Fourteen Million, Eight 
Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, Four Hundred Twenty-One Dollars ($14,879,421) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “General Corporate Tax”: for 
the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the General County Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
GENERAL FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of general 
county government as set forth in “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Fourteen Million, Eight Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, Four Hundred Twenty-One Dollars 
($14,879,421) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a 
“General Corporate Tax”:  for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the General County Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



   Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the IMRF Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $2,000,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said 
year 2024, as a “Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said 
County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Pension code,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”:  and that the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that 
will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the County Highway Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $3,061,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three Million, Sixty-One 
Thousand Dollars ($3,061,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Highway Tax”: for the purpose set forth in chapter 
121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981 and that the County Clerk 
of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will 
produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Highway Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Million, Sixty-One Thousand Dollars ($3,061,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Highway Tax”: for the purpose 
set forth in chapter 121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981 and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County 
Highway Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                              
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the County Bridge Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $634,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six Hundred, Thirty-Four 
Thousand Dollars ($634,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024 as a “County Bridge Tax”: for the purpose of constructing any 
bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto by means of an 
embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the County Clerk of said 
County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 2025 Appropriations 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six 
Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars ($634,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Bridge Tax”:  for the purpose of 
constructing any bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto by 
means of an embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 
2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Federal Aid Matching Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $2,077,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Seventy-
Seven Thousand Dollars ($2,077,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”: for the purpose of 
providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses in construction of highways in the 
federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 121, paragraph 5-603, of the Illinois 
Revised Statutes - 1981, and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
FEDERAL AID MATCHING FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Seventy-Seven Thousand Dollars ($2,077,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”:  for the 
purpose of providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses in construction of 
highways in the federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 121, paragraph 5-
603, of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981, and that  the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Health Department Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $2,312,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Three 
Hundred and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($2,312,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “County Public Health Fund Tax”: for the year 2024 and that 
the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Public 
Health Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State 
of Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the Fiscal Year 
October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act in Relation 
to the Establishment and Maintenance of County and Multiple County Public Health 
Departments,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Two Million, Three Hundred Twelve Thousand Dollars ($2,312,000) on all the taxable property 
in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “County Public Health Fund Tax”:  for the 
year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the County Public Health Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County 
Of Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted,   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Steve Schultz 

Committee: Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:  Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Tort Judgment and Liability Fund. 

County Code:  Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $4,853,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Four Million, Eight 
Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($4,853,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance 
Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend 
a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Tort 
Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
TORT JUDGMENT AND LIABILITY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort 
Immunity Act,” as amended.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Four 
Million, Eight Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($4,853,000) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Tort Judgment and 
Liability Insurance Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposes as set forth in the Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Social Security Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $5,200,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five Million, Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,200,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Social Security and Medicare Fund Tax”: and that 
the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Social 
Security and Medicare Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
              SOCIAL SECURITY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Revised Statutes chapter 108-1/2, paragraph 7-
172.2.”.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five 
Million, Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,200,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Social Security and Medicare Fund Tax”: 
and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a 
rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Social Security and Medicare Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steven Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Veterans Assistance Fund  

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $1,120,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, One Hundred 
and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($1,120,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”: and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans Assistance 
Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1  

2024 CO 

T A X L E V Y 
VETERANS ASSISTANCE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and 

 
WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 

County Government as set forth in the “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended, and the Military Veterans Assistance Act (330 ILCS 45/0.01 et seq.), as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, One Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars ($1,120,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”; and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans 
Assistance Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2  

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF  
 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS  DAY OF  2024. 
 
 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Detention Home Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $1,640,000 

If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, Six 
Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,640,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2024 for the purpose of purchasing, erecting, leasing, or 
otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining such detention home, and said tax 
was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago on November 2, 1954. the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will 
produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Detention Home Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
DETENTION HOME FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Authorities 
to Provide for the Temporary Care and Custody of Dependent, Delinquent, or Truant Children, 
and to Levy and Collect a Tax for the Purpose.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Six Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,640,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2024 for the purpose of purchasing, erecting, 
leasing, or otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining such detention home, 
and said tax was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago on November 2, 
1954.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Detention Home Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Historical Museum Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $150,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred  Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($150,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”: for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County 
be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount 
for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Historical Museum Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
HISTORICAL MUSEUM FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “An Act to Levy Taxes for the Maintenance of Historical 
Museums,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”:  for the year 2024 and that the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that 
will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Historical Museum Fund 
2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGAGO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Nursing Home Operations Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $2,900,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Nine 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,900,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a County Nursing Home for the 
year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to 
extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposed as set forth in 
the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X L E V Y 
COUNTY NURSING HOME OPERATIONS FUND 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago did adopt a resolution for a 
referendum to establish a levy for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and 

WHEREAS, a majority of the voters of Winnebago County, Illinois voting in the election of 
June 28, 2022 voted in favor of authorizing the County to increase the amount levied by the County 
from 0.0445% to 0.1% for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Revise the 
Law in Relation to Counties,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,900,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a County Nursing 
Home for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposed as set forth in the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2  

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF  
 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS  DAY OF  2024. 
 
 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Steve Schultz 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 17th, 2024 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 
for the Children’s Advocacy Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $155,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred, Fifty-Five 
Thousand Dollars ($155,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024 for the purpose of establishing and maintaining a Children’s 
Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the County of Winnebago on April 
20, 1993. the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a 
rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in the “Children’s 
Advocacy Center Act.”  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred, Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($155,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024 for the purpose of establishing and 
maintaining a Children’s Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the 
County of Winnebago on April 20, 1993.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposes as set forth in the Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTTITA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



CLOSED SESSION TO  
DISCUSS PENDING 

LITIGATION & LABOR 
NEGOTIATIONS 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: October 17, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Luis Munoz versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: N/A 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $12,211.77 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $12,211.77 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Luis Munoz in the amount of $12,211.77. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated this settlement on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

LUIS MUNOZ VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Luis Munoz for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $12,211.77 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Luis Munoz versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Luis Munoz while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $12,211.77 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Luis Munoz in the amount of 
$12,211.77 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: October 17, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Zoe Walker versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: N/A 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $14,312.49 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $14,312.49 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Zoe Walker in the amount of $14,312.49. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated this settlement on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

ZOE WALKER VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Zoe Walker for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $14,312.49 for the settlement funding 
for her Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Zoe Walker versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Zoe Walker while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $14,312.49 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Zoe Walker in the amount of 
$14,312.49 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: October 17, 2024 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled James Gregory versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: N/A 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $10,313.75 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $10,313.75 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Luis Munoz in the amount of $10,313.75. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated this settlement on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
JAMES GREGORY VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by James Gregory for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Facilities 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $10,313.75 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled James Gregory versus 
County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by James Gregory while in the employment 
of the Facilities Department by payment of the amount of $10,313.75 for the settlement for 
permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for James Gregory in the amount of 
$10,313.75 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for General Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for IMRF Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for County Highway Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for County Bridge Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Federal Aid Matching Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Health Department Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Tort Judgment & Liabiity Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Social Security Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Veterans Assistance Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Detention Home Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Historical Museum Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Nursing Home Operations Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2025 for Children's Advocacy Fund
	Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation & Labor Negotiations
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled Luis Munoz vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled Zoe Walker vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled James Gregory vs. Winn. Cty.



